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SOLICITATION ADDENDUM

	Date:
	3/18/2024
	

	Subject:
	Drug and Alcohol Testing 
	

	Solicitation Number:
	6100060361
	

	Due Date/Time:
	March 27, 2024 at 10am Eastern Standard Time
	

	Addendum Number:
	4
	






To All Suppliers:

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania defines a solicitation “Addendum” as an addition to or amendment of the original terms, conditions, specifications, or instructions of a procurement solicitation (e.g., Invitation for Bids or Request for Proposals). 

List any and all changes:

*Statement of Work was revised, reference Supplier Questions 2 (two),  3 (three), 5 (five), and 7 (seven) of addendum 4.

*Appendix A – Terms and Conditions was revised, reference Supplier Question 6 (six) of addendum 4.
 
*Appendix B – Cost Submittal was revised, reference Supplier Question 5 (five) of addendum 4.

*Appendix K – Lobbying Certification Form was added as a requirement, reference Supplier Question 7 (seven) of addendum 4.

SUPPLIER QUESTION 1. Relative to the Business Associate Agreement (BAA) (Section IV-2.B HIPAA Regulations & Appendix F), vendors who are toxicology laboratories do not “qualify” as a “HIPAA business associate under 45 C.F.R. Sec. 160.103 and, therefore, a BAA would not be applicable. It is our understanding that this IFB involves the ability to bid on non-clinical testing RFQ opportunities (such as criminal justice testing for the DOC and employment testing for multiple state agencies). For non-clinical testing, such as that in support of a court-ordered drug treatment program, both the clinician who orders the testing (Commonwealth) and the lab conducting the testing (Bidder / Laboratory) are “health care providers” within the meaning of HIPAA, and BAAs are not required between health care providers. Further, even for clinical testing, a BAA also would not be applicable. When our laboratory performs clinical testing services, we also are a health care provider within the meaning of the HIPAA; thus, we cannot, by definition, also be a Business Associate to the Commonwealth (or its designees or partner), another health care provider, when providing these services. The functional regulator for HIPAA, the Office of Civil Rights for the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“OCR-HHS”) and other sub-units of HHS, such as the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, have repeatedly issued guidance over the years directly and indirectly designating laboratories as health care providers. In light of the above, we would request that Commonwealth remove the BAA from the bid as inapplicable to the services being provided.

A 1. Bidders must comply with HIPAA, but if the bidder is not considered a covered entity under the BAA, it is not required to sign the form.

SUPPLIER QUESTION 2. In section C Services, we see SAMHSA and DOT as "associated regulations." SAMHSA is meant to regulate federal workplace testing, and US DOT requirements are typically associated with commercial driver's license (CDL) regulations. Can the Commonwealth clarify that these would be applicable only to vendors providing employee testing and/or if one of the agencies specifically required those regulations and associated practices as part of their RFQ?

A 2. Upon further review the commonwealth has updated section IV-2.C.4.a of the Statement of Work. Answers to Supplier Question 14 from Addendum 1 and Supplier Question 1 from Addendum 2 are void.

SUPPLIER QUESTION 3. Regarding the Department of Corrections SCI cutoff table (top of page 14), is there a typo on the Alcohol screen and confirmation cutoffs? This looks extremely low. Should these look more like the table above it, where Alcohol is 400,000 ng/mL or 0.4 gm/dL instead?

A 3.     Section IV-4.J, LOT 1 ONLY (Department of Corrections SCIs) table has been updated. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 4. Regarding section N Confidentiality, please verify that this does not include de-identified data, and also that the Supplier is authorized to disclose confidential information such if it is required by law, such as through a subpoena.

A 4. Please see Section 32 of Appendix A – Terms and Conditions. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 5. Regarding section V.1.d Reporting Method, for upload of test results to one of the agency's systems: many criminal justice agencies utilize case management software that is provided by or maintained by a third party vendor. If the Agency's third party vendor charges a fee in order for vendors to create an interface to upload results, does the Commonwealth agree that the Agency will pay the identified fee to the third party as long as the vendor themselves does not charge an additional fee for their portion of the interface development? Or will this be a topic covered as part of an RFQ?

A 5. Vendors may include third party software fees in the RFQ response to agencies. Section IV-3.C.5 of the Statement of Work has been updated, along with Appendix B – Cost Submittal to reflect this change. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 6. On Appendix A, what is Exhibit C (page 67) in relation to and when is it utilized?

A 6. Please see Revised Appendix A.   Exhibit C has been removed.   

SUPPLIER QUESTION 7. We do not see the Lobbying Certification Form and Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Form indicated in section 15 (page 6) of Appendix A. Can you please provide this form if it is required?

A 7.  Lobbying Certification Form has been added as Appendix K and is a requirement for this IFB. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 8. Regarding section 11.b Information Technology Policies, if a Contractor wishes to submit a waiver, does the Commonwealth require this to be submitted with the bid addressing any and all policy exceptions or would this be performed on an agency by agency basis during an Agency-Issued RFQ depending on the requirements?

A 8.  Any ITP waiver requests will be dealt with during the RFQ process. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 9. Regarding section 14 Representations and Authorizations, subsection F, for publicly traded companies with a large number of employees and affiliates, would the Commonwealth consider the addition of the phrase "who are performing services under this agreement" following "the Offeror, its affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, directors, and employees" to limit the scope to a reasonable assumption of knowledge that the person signing would have?

A 9. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.

SUPPLIER QUESTION 10. Regarding section 21.e Records: Would the Commonwealth allow for the Bidder to provide wage rates only and not the names of employees? We are concerned about providing any information that would violate employer-employee confidentiality.

A 10. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.

SUPPLIER QUESTION 11. Regarding section 29.a.i Termination: Would the Commonwealth allow Bidders a mutual ability to terminate the contract with prior notice (e.g. 30 or 60 days)?

A 11. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 12. Regarding Section 30a Background Checks: Would the Commonwealth consider striking the annual background checks after hire as long as a criminal background check is performed at the time of hire? Some states where Vendor laboratories reside outside of Pennsylvania have specific requirements regarding when an employer can conduct a background check and details around how they may be performed.

A 12. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 13. Regarding section 30c: Would the Commonwealth consider striking or modifying this term? This is broad and open-ended and there is no way for the Bidder to know what this would entail--and, therefore, what they are committing to--with the language as is.

A 13.  The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 14. Regarding section 31 Contract Controversies, would the Commonwealth consider deleting this provision and/or negotiating changes to this language to allow it to be more open ended?

A 14.  The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  Further, negotiation of terms is prohibited on IFBs. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 15. Regarding section 32 Confidentiality: Would the Commonwealth verify that the Contractor will not be prohibited from using the Commonwealth's confidential information to the extent necessary to perform its usual business functions, including for example, using PII to effectuate a voluntary or mandatory recall, reporting sales information as required by law, etc.? Please also verify that confidential information would not include de-identified data.

A 15.  The Confidentiality Section of the Terms and Conditions includes the answers to your question. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 16. Regarding section 33 Sensitive Information, would the Commonwealth consider striking the second paragraph or modifying?

 A 16.  The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 17. Regarding Section 34.b.i Data Breach or Loss: Reporting within 1 hour is unreasonably restrictive for the measures that need to be taken during a data breach or loss to verify details and estimate scope, etc. Would the Commonwealth consider allowing for a more reasonable notification window, such as 5 business days, or for a change to "prompt" notification?

A 17. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  


SUPPLIER QUESTION 18. Regarding section 34.b.ii and iii, would the Commonwealth consider striking or amending these sections upon further discussion with Contractors?

A 18.  The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.   Negotiations and/or discussions are prohibited on IFBs. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 19. Regarding section 39 Limitation of Liability: Would the Commonwealth consider adding language to indicate that in no event will the Contractor be liable for any indirect, special, punitive, exemplary or consequential damages of any kind (including reputational harm, lost profits, loss of business, or other similar damages) and that maximum aggregate liability for all claims hereunder including, but not limited to indemnification, is limited to the amount paid or payable to the Contractor by the Commonwealth in the 12 months prior to the event giving rise to the claim?

A 19. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 20. Regarding section 40 Indemnification, would the Commonwealth consider modification of the indemnification section in part or whole as follows: Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Commonwealth, its officers, directors, agents, and employees (“Commonwealth Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all liabilities, losses, proceedings, actions, damages, claims, or expenses of any kind (including costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively, “Losses”), which directly result from any third party claim relating to the infringement of any valid patent by reason of the sale or use of any Products purchased or furnished hereunder when such Product is used in accordance with its product insert or Instructions for Use. The Commonwealth Indemnified Party shall give Contractor prompt notice of any claim that could give rise to a claim for indemnity under this Agreement and the Commonwealth Indemnified Party shall cooperate with Contractor in the defense of any claim for which indemnity is provided. Contractor shall be permitted to defend the claim and make all decisions related thereto, including but not limited to hiring counsel of its choosing. Contractor shall also have the sole right to settle any indemnified legal claim provided that it obtains a complete release for the Commonwealth Indemnified Party. This Section shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement for one year.

[bookmark: _Hlk161303556]A 20. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 21. Regarding section 42 Virus, Malicious, Mischievous or Destructive Programming, does the Commonwealth anticipate Contractors using the Commonwealth's software or having access to its networks as part of this contract?

A 21. Please review Statement of Work, Section IV-4. SCOPE OF SERVICES, Subsection V.

SUPPLIER QUESTION 22. Regarding section 43 Patent, Copyright, Trademark and Trade Secret Protection: Would the Commonwealth consider striking this section?

A 22.  The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 23. Regarding section 45 Use of Third Party Property, would the Commonwealth consider striking this section? If not, would the Commonwealth verify that pre-existing patents, patent applications, trademarks, service marks, trade dress, copyrights, design rights, know-how, inventions, trade secrets, technologies, moral rights or other proprietary or intellectual property rights owned prior to execution of the agreement ("Pre-Existing Intellectual Property") are the separate property of the Contractor and shall remain solely owned by the Contractor? And that the Commonwealth will not acquire ownership of any Pre-Existing Intellectual Property, including any improvements to such Pre-Existing Intellectual Property?

A 23.  The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.   The Commonwealth with your assertion regarding pre-existing intellectual property. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 24. Regarding section 51.c Americans with Disabilities Act: would the Commonwealth consider removing "indemnify and hold harmless" and replacing with "defend?"

A 24. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 25. Regarding section 52 Examination of Records and section 53 Single Audit Act of 1984 and 57.c.iii Investigations, could the Commonwealth agree to the following, or parts of the following: 1) any audits being conducted by an external auditing firm, preferably at no charge to the Contractor, 2) that the scope of the audit would be limited to only documents that directly pertain to the contract, 3) that on-site audits would be only with permission of the Contractor and that these would not include access to the Contractor's electronic systems or records, 4) that the audit would be limited to 12 months backward-looking and up to 12 months from contract expiration, and 5) that audits would not automatically result in the Contractor paying fees unless they are uncontested by the Contractor?

A 25. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 26. Specifically related to section 53 Single Audit Act, please verify that audits are limited to the extent required by applicable law.

A 26. The vendor must cooperate with the Commonwealth and Federal Government pursuant to the law. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 27. Regarding Section 56 Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment, would the Commonwealth consider striking "all necessary employment documents and records" and "access to books, records and accounts?" We can provide EEO-1 reports but would not necessarily provide access to all of these types of records. Additionally, would the Commonwealth consider striking the Notification of Violations section?

A 27. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 28. Regarding section 57.b.i, Representations & Warranties would the Commonwealth allow for publicly traded entities with hundreds of affiliates (i.e. too many to reasonably represent on behalf of) to point to their SEC reports for published material pending investigations, lawsuits, administrative proceedings, and other legal matters instead of representing these as part of the bid/contract?

A 28.  The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A. 

SUPPLIER QUESTION 29. Would the Commonwealth allow publicly traded entities to strike sections 57.b.i-iii and viii, Contractor Responsibilities, if instead they warrant that they will abide by a Code of Business Conduct which includes provisions dealing with Compliance with the Law, Conflict of Interest, Confidential Information, Gifts and Entertainment, Equal Employment Opportunity and Medicare/Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Laws, including the False Claims Act? We can provide a link to this policy/governance, which is publicly available for investors to review.

A 29. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 30. Regarding section 57.b.iv and b.viii Contractor Integrity Provisions: Would the Commonwealth consider insertion of the word "promptly" instead of "immediately" regarding relevant notifications?

A 30. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 31. Regarding section 57.c Contractor Integrity Provisions - Investigations: Would the Commonwealth consider striking this section or modifying verbiage herein? This language appears to open vendors up to very broad investigations and require disclosure of even suspected violations. Further, would the Commonwealth strike the phrase requiring Contractor employees to be available for interviews? This may not be allowed under existing employment agreements.

A 31. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 32. Also regarding 57.c, would the Commonwealth consider striking the requirement for investigation cost reimbursement and instead allow for simply terminating the agreement?

A 32. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 33. Regarding section 57.d. Contractor Integrity Provisions - Termination: would the Commonwealth consider deletion of the phrase regarding liquidated damages and the phrase regarding claiming of damages for all additional costs?

A 33.  The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 34. Regarding section 58, Assignment of Rights under Antitrust Laws, would the Commonwealth allow for the addition of language that indicates that each of the Contractor and the Commonwealth "reserve all rights, title and interest in and to all causes of action they may now have or hereafter acquire under the antitrust laws of the United States and the Commonwealth relating to the particular goods or services purchased or acquired by the Commonwealth under this contract. Each reserve the right to bring antitrust actions on their own behalf for their own losses"?

A 34. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 35. Regarding section 35 Insurance, section a.i, would the Commonwealth allow Workers Comp with statutory limits, including Employer's Liability with a limit of not less than $1MM per occurrence?

A 35. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 36. Regarding section 35 Insurance, section a.ii, would the Commonwealth allow removal of $500,000 per person, and striking "personal injury and property damage combined?" Our policy does not have a per person limit.

A 36.  The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 37. Regarding section a.ii, our CGL insurance is claims-made; would the Commonwealth allow for a claims-made policy if the Contractor is able to maintain a tail, such as 2 years after termination of the Contract?

A 37. A 20. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  

SUPPLIER QUESTION 38. Regarding section 35 Insurance, section b, Certificate of Insurance, our insurers will not provide notifications to additional insureds. Would the Commonwealth instead allow for Contractors to take on notification requirements, such as by adding the following language to the section: "In the event of any notice or action to cancel, non-renew, or materially change any of the above required insurance, each party shall provide the other thirty (30) days advance notice of such change. Such cancellation or change shall not relieve the Contractor of its continuing obligation to maintain insurance coverage in accordance with this section."

A 38. The Commonwealth will not be revising this Section of Appendix A.  


Type of Solicitation:  Electronic Bid (SRM) - Review the Questions section of your solicitation response to ensure you have responded, as required, to any questions relevant to solicitation addenda issued subsequent to the initial advertisement of the solicitation opportunity.

Except as clarified and amended by this Addendum, the terms, conditions, specifications, and instructions of the solicitation and any previous solicitation addenda, remain as originally written.


Respectfully,

Name: 	Tyler Kline 	
Title: 	Commodity Specialist 
Phone: 	717-787-4718
Email:  	tylkline@pa.gov
BOP-1305			
Revised 02/03/2020
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